October 12, 2016
To The Finance Committee
of the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
190 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
Dear Committee Members:
In addition to the required communications that we included in a separate letter, we have some
observations about financial trends, internal controls, compliance, policies and procedures, and best
practices.
Trends


The Buffalo City School District and other surrounding districts paid more timely this year than
last year. As a result, accounts receivable decreased $64,000.



During the school year, you purchased the building that you were previously leasing. Building
and improvements increased $3,759,000 for the cost of the building and decreased $830,000 for
the disposal of leasehold improvements. The disposal led to a loss of $428,783.



The purchase of the building was financed with bonds. The cost of financing was capitalized and
is amortized over the life of the bond. There was $2,989,514 due on the bonds at year-end and
$398,868 is current.



A prior period adjustment was made to recognize the full value of a contribution type grant in the
year it was received. This led to an increase in net assets of $133,600.



Technology expense increased $116,000 over the prior year. This is due to the purchase of 350
new ChromeBooks.

Control Deficiencies
The following is not considered a significant deficiency or material weakness:


We know that you keep a cash log to track all incoming receipts. However, we noted that
not all checks received were included in the log. You should compare the log to deposit
slips to ensure all incoming funds are accounted for. Additionally, receipts are not
consistently being deposited on a timely basis. As a result, not only is there risk of loss
from theft, misplacement, or misappropriation, but the cash is not available for
expenditures or investment. We recommend that deposits be made on a weekly basis. If it
is inconvenient for your employees to make weekly trips to the bank, you should consider
using check scanning equipment which result in immediate deposit of checks received.

Compliance


In January 2016, the New York State Department of Education issued guidance that
schools must obtain current documentation of each student's district of residence upon
enrollment and at the beginning of each school year thereafter. During testwork, we noted
that all files had proof of residency but some of the documentation was more than a year
old. As a result, the proof of address did not always match the current address on file. You
should ensure that documentation of current addresses is obtained at the beginning of each
school year so that you are compliant with the guidance. Also, having this information
prior to the beginning of the year will reduce the risk associated with billing the wrong
district and having to repay funds. You should also ensure student files include all other
necessary documentation for proof of existence, such as birth certificates.



You should also review and update your conflict-of-interest policy to ensure it is compliant
with the NYS Nonprofit Revitalization Act. The new rules include specific requirements
for dealing with board members or other related parties as providers of services. With a
policy in place, you can carry on appropriate business transactions according to approved
practices. Board members should sign conflict of interest statements annually, and this
should be documented in your minutes.



Uniform Guidance, the federal rules about requirements for agencies receiving federal
funding has been recently updated. Your school receives federal funding for Title I and
Title II. We recommend that you review your purchasing policy to make sure it is updated
to comply with the Uniform Guidance.

Best Practices


Once an invoice is paid, it should be marked to avoid repayment. You can do this
manually, with the use of a "paid" stamp, or by writing the check number on the invoice.
This reduces the possibility of duplicate payment of an invoice. Duplicate payments can
lead to refunds which are not expected and easily misdirected.



You should take a physical inventory of property and equipment periodically and compare
this to accounting records. This enables you to remove any assets that may have been
disposed of or are no longer in use from your balance sheet and ensure that records are
complete. This would also help assure that your insurance coverage is adequate and
support any insurance claims. If you are not able to do this annually, you should consider
taking digital pictures of all rooms and storing those electronically or in a secure place.

Information Technology Observation


It is more common for employees to access email, calendars, and other organization
information using smart phones and tablets. You should consider written procedures over
the use of these devices if they are used to access school information. These devices should
be password-protected and set up so that confidential information can be remotely deleted
to reduce the risk that your school's sensitive information could be compromised.

Please contact us if you have any questions about this letter or if we can help in any other way.

Sincerely,

Heveron & Company CPAs

Auditors' Communications
October 12, 2016
To The Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
190 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
Dear Board Members:
This letter is intended only for the board and those responsible for management and governance.
Although we did review some of your internal controls, we did not perform an examination of them that
would allow us to give an opinion on the adequacy of your controls.
Those charged with management and governance are responsible for:
safeguarding your assets,
ensuring that your resources are used as directed by funders, donors, and as required by charities
laws and your own articles of incorporation,
assuring that you are complying with laws, regulations, contracts and grants associated with your
funding,
properly recording and reporting results of operations and account balances, and
proper business practices, operating procedures, documentation and controls.
Our audit was designed to help you with those responsibilities, and is also designed and intended to help
you to benchmark your administrative operations to best practices.
Our Responsibilities to You
As part of our audit we are required to inform you of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
your controls that we become aware of.
Controls are procedures, policies, and responsibilities that you put in place to make sure that appropriate
transactions take place and are reported properly on your financial statements. Examples of controls are
timely billing for services you perform, ensuring proper payments are received and recorded, and
measures to prevent overpayment of payroll or vendors.

Control deficiencies result when proper procedures are not in place to assure that appropriate
transactions are carried out, recorded and reported properly.
Significant deficiencies are control deficiencies or combinations of control deficiencies that are less
severe than material weaknesses, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Material weaknesses are significant deficiencies or combinations of significant deficiencies such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
The Role of Internal Controls
Internal controls are managements’ standards to safeguard your assets. They include the following
components:
Setting expectations of integrity and ethical conduct, with actions such as proper hiring and
training,
Assessing risks based on your operations and your staffing,
Establishing control activities, such as separation of responsibilities, to reduce risks,
Communications from senior management to all involved staff about internal controls, and
Monitoring-ongoing evaluation of whether controls are appropriate and are working.
General Observations
Our general observations are that:
Your record-keeping system is appropriate for your financial recording and reporting needs,
including allocation of revenue and expense to various programs.
Record-keeping appears to be done in a timely, complete and conscientious manner.
Internal controls are good given your staff size.
The attitude of management regarding the importance of proper systems and controls seems
appropriate.
We did not have disagreements with management in connection with our audits or difficulties in
performing the audits, and, to our knowledge, management did not consult with other CPAs about
audit issues.
We did not become aware of fraud or illegal acts, and there were no significant financial statement
adjustments or unusual transactions.
No material accounting adjustments were left unrecorded.
There were no major changes in accounting policies and procedures or in estimating for things
such as the useful lives of equipment items, bad debts or functional allocations.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Sincerely,

Heveron & Company CPAs

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE
CHARTER SCHOOL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
Buffalo, New York
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter
School (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2017 and 2016
and the related statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the
financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and
its cash flows for the years then ended and the changes in net assets and functional expenses for the
year ended June 30, 2017 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited the Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School's statements of activities
and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2016, and we expressed an unmodified audit
opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 20, 2016. In our opinion,
the summarized comparative information presented herein, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 30,
2017 on our consideration of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School's internal control over
financial reporting, and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Heveron & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Rochester, New York
October 30, 2017
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2017 and 2016

ASSETS
2017

2016

$ 973,526
7,125

$1,171,683
10,843

63,436
45,569
16,346

14,477
8,523
12,974

1,106,002

1,218,500

Land
Building and Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Vehicles
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

186,400
4,200,240
1,210,326
4,741
(976,484)

155,900
3,619,661
1,056,311
(749,725)

Net Property and Equipment

4,625,223

4,082,147

5,480

5,480

5,480

5,480

$5,736,705

$5,306,127

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Total Current Assets
Property and Equipment

Other Assets
Security Deposits
Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
2017

2016

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Extra Classroom Funds
Current Portion of Bonds Payable
Total Current Liabilities

$

84,082
358,834
9,183
411,642

$

23,029
395,401
10,843
398,868

863,741

828,141

2,179,004
(133,080)
2,045,924
6,377

2,590,646
(155,894)
2,434,752
74,736

Total Long-Term Liabilities

2,052,301

2,509,488

Total Liabilities

2,916,042

3,337,629

2,657,314
113,349
2,770,663
50,000

1,268,498
700,000
1,968,498
-

2,820,663

1,968,498

$5,736,705

$5,306,127

Long-Term Liabilities
Bonds Payable
Less: Bond Acquisition Costs, Net
Net Bonds Payable
Interest Rate Swap Contracts

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Undesignated
Board Designated
Total Unrestricted Net Assets
Temporarily Restricted
Total Net Assets
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2016)

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted
Revenues and Other Support:
Public School District:
Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment $ 5,588,974 $
Revenue - Students with Disabilities
321,273
Special Charter School Aid
84,114
Federal Grants
279,509
State Grants
158,947
Contributions
10,952
Other Income
34,411
Total Revenues and Other Support
Expenses:
Program Services:
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs
Total Program Services Expense
Supporting Services:
Management and General
Total Expenses

6,478,180

2017

2016

$ 5,588,974 $ 4,714,446
321,273
298,679
84,114
279,509
202,239
158,947
95,455
50,000
60,952
15,002
34,411
24,209
50,000

6,528,180

5,350,030

4,216,215
198,727
55,822

-

4,216,215
198,727
55,822

3,619,430
241,601
55,670

4,470,764

-

4,470,764

3,916,701

1,273,610

-

1,273,610

1,075,939

5,744,374

-

5,744,374

4,992,640

783,806

357,390

Excess of Revenues and Other
Support Over Expenses Before
Other Expenses

733,806

Other Expenses
Loss on Disposal of Assets

-

Excess/(Deficit) of Revenues and
Other Support Over Expenses After
Other Expenses

733,806
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50,000
-

50,000

-

783,806

(428,783)

(71,393)

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2016)
(Continued)
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted
Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Gain/(Loss) on Change in Fair
Value of Derivative
Instruments
Net Assets - End of Year

2017

2016
2,114,627

1,968,498

-

1,968,498

68,359

-

68,359

$ 2,770,663 $

(74,736)

50,000 $ 2,820,663 $ 1,968,498

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2016)

2017
No. of
Positions

Program Services
Regular
Special
Other
Education
Education
Programs

Management
and General

Totals
2017

2016

7,141
276,473
384,802

$ 2,389,997
472,915
384,802

$ 2,035,366
358,620
362,753

Personnel Service Costs
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel
Administrative Personnel

68
39
7

$ 2,240,496
196,442
-

Total Salaries and Wages

114

2,436,938

128,641

13,719

668,416

3,247,714

2,756,739

189,778
530,278

15,021
21,765

1,029

48,510
115,310

253,309
668,382

294,440
522,680

3,156,994

165,427

14,748

832,236

4,169,405

3,573,859

170,150
163,747
133,922
104,909
96,280
68,495
76,697
57,351
52,982
44,379

8,982
5,205
5,538
2,041
4,049
2,656
2,341

41,074
-

47,627
27,893
33,855
29,366
18,988
5,200
21,468
84,837
23,182
18,844
17,275

226,759
196,845
167,777
139,813
117,309
114,769
102,214
84,837
80,533
74,482
63,995

195,579
151,570
119,732
79,577
172,512
87,358
63,119
80,606
28,501
59,669
54,034

Retirement
Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes
Total Personnel Service Costs
Depreciation
Other Professional Services
Supplies and Materials
Interest
Technology
Student Services
Repairs and Maintenance
Marketing and Recruitment
Professional Development
Insurance
Travel and Parking

$

128,641
-
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$

13,719
-

$

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2016)
(Continued)
Program Services
Regular
Special
Other
Education
Education
Programs
Utilities
Other Expenses
Legal Services
Office Expense
Equipment and Furnishings
Accounting and Auditing Fees
Building Rent and Taxes
Total Expenses

47,138
42,530
641
$ 4,216,215

2,488
$

198,727

$

55,822

Management
and General
13,194
16,004
27,532
20,534
20,655
14,920
-

Totals
2017

2016

62,820
58,534
27,532
21,175
20,655
14,920
-

47,978
56,404
33,652
23,059
4,825
15,647
144,959

$ 1,273,610 $ 5,744,374

$ 4,992,640

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
2017

2016

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Revenue from School Districts
Special Charter School Aid
Grant Revenues
Contributions
Other Sources
Payments to Vendors for Goods and Services Rendered
Payments to Charter School Personnel for Services Rendered

$ 5,876,218 $ 5,077,536
84,114
358,493
271,660
60,952
15,002
34,411
24,209
(1,237,670) (1,066,391)
(4,205,972) (3,645,067)

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities

970,546

676,949

Purchase of Property and Equipment

(769,835)

(587,837)

Cash Flow Used By Investing Activities

(769,835)

(587,837)

(398,868)
-

(260,486)
(171,103)

Cash Flow Used By Financing Activities

(398,868)

(431,589)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(198,157)

(342,477)

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Payments on Bonds
Bond Acquisition Costs

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

1,171,683

1,514,160

$

973,526 $ 1,171,683

$

116,999 $

Supplemental Disclosures
Cash Paid During The Year For:
Interest

64,368

Noncash Investing and Financing Transaction:
Purchase of Building
Building
Bonds Payable

$
$
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-

$ 3,250,000
$(3,250,000)

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
2017
783,806 $

2016
(71,393)

Depreciation
Bond Acquisition Interest
Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment
(Increase)/Decrease In:

226,759
22,814
-

195,579
15,209
428,783

Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Security Deposits
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds
Increase/(Decrease) In:

(48,959)
(37,046)
(3,372)
3,718

64,411
9,384
459
39,076
62,184
(1,758)

Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds

61,053
(36,567)
(1,660)

4,463
(71,206)
1,758

970,546

676,949

Excess/(Deficit) of Support and Revenue Over Expenses
Adjustments to Reconcile Excess of Support and Revenue
Over Expenses to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities

$

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
Organization
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School (the School) is a not-for-profit education
corporation that operates grades 5th and 7th through 12th dedicated to providing quality
education to a diverse body of students in the Buffalo region of New York State. Located in
the heart of Buffalo’s downtown business/government sector, the School continually provides
a rigorous, innovative and enhanced curriculum – highlighting science, technology,
engineering, and math (STEM) – in order to prepare students for successful futures in the
global environment. The School obtains its revenue mainly from Charter School Basic Tuition
from the Buffalo City School District and a few other surrounding school districts, in addition
to state and federal grants.
The main programs of the School are as follows:
REGULAR EDUCATION: The School's curriculum is focused on science, technology,
engineering and math. The School maintains high expectations for students and provides
varied opportunities for students to gain skills necessary to be competitive in the 21st century
marketplace.
SPECIAL EDUCATION: The School is open to all children and does not discriminate on the
basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, disability, or any other grounds that would be
unlawful or deny the civil rights of any individual. In accordance with the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act, the Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, and the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the School provides a free and appropriate education, in the least restrictive
environment to students with disabilities. The primary service delivery for students with
special needs is inclusion. Services for students requiring supplemental services are provided
by the Buffalo City School District.
OTHER PROGRAMS: Other programs include food services, athletics, and extra-curricular
activities.
Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
existence and nature of donor restrictions in three classes of net assets: unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted. There were no permanently restricted net
assets at June 30, 2017 and 2016.
The School also records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and nature of any donor
restrictions.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America allow the School to
treat as unrestricted, any restricted revenue where the restrictions are met in the same year.
The School has elected to follow that reporting method. As a result, all activities in which
restrictions are met are recorded in the Unrestricted Net Asset class.
The following are descriptions of the School's net asset classifications:
Unrestricted:
Undesignated: Unrestricted net assets include resources that are available for the general
support of the School's operations.
Board Designated: The Board of Trustees has resolved to set aside funds for future
expansion of the school to grades K-6. Board designated funds totaled $113,349 and
$700,000 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets: Temporarily restricted net assets result from contributions
subject to donor's restrictions that expire with the passage of time, or by actions of the School.
There was $50,000 of temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 restricted for after
school programs. There were no temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2016.
When donor restrictions from prior years expire, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue Recognition
A portion of the School's revenue is derived from grants. Amounts received, but not yet
earned are reported as deferred revenue.
Funding sources may, at their discretion, amend the grant and contract amounts. In addition,
reimbursement for expenses or return of funds, or both, may be requested as a result of
noncompliance by the School with the terms of the grants and contracts. The School records
such amendments, reimbursements, and returns of funds as an adjustment to revenue in the
year of the amendment.
Contributions
Contributions are recorded at the time of receipt or when evidence of a non-conditional
promise to give has been received. Promises subject to conditions are not recorded as income
until those conditions have been met. Contributions that are expected to be received in future
years are recorded at their present value. Contributions are recorded as unrestricted, unless
they are subject to donor restrictions or are required to be used or expected to be received in
future years.
Accounts and Grants Receivable
Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect. Amounts that
management believes to be uncollectible after collection efforts have been completed are
written off. In addition, management evaluates the need for, and if appropriate, provides an
allowance to reduce receivables to amounts management expects will be collected.
Management determined that no allowances were necessary at June 30, 2017 and 2016.
Income Taxes
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the School is qualified as a charity exempt
under Section 501( p)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result, no provision for federal
or state income taxes has been made.
Marketing
Marketing costs are expensed as incurred.
Inventories
Inventories consist of school uniforms and are recorded at cost.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. The School capitalizes property and equipment
with an estimated life of three years or more as follows:

Leasehold Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Computers

Cost
$5,000
$2,000
$5,000

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment purchased as a bundle greater than $20,000 will be also be
capitalized and all land and vehicle acquisitions are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization
is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Buildings
Building Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Computers

Years
40
10-20
5
3

Depreciation expense amounted to $226,759 and $195,579 for the years ended June 30, 2017
and 2016, respectively.
Functional Expenses
The costs of providing the various program services have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among program and supporting services. An immaterial amount of fundraising costs for the
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 are included in management and general expenses.
Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America established a
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1 measurements), and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described on the next page:
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
Level 1: Inputs to the valuation method are unadjusted quoted market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs to the valuation method include:
! quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
! quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
! inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
! inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or by other means.
Level 3: Inputs to the valuation method are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.
The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on hand and in banks, which at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. The School considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Certain of these accounts are not
federally insured. The School has not experienced any losses in these accounts and does not
believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at June 30:

Checking
Savings
Money Market
Total
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2017
$ 670,639
227,678
75,209

2016
$ 869,027
227,528
75,128

$ 973,526

$1,171,683

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues
and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could vary
from those estimates.
Comparative Financial Information
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in
total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the School’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016 from which the
summarized information was derived.
Reclassifications
Certain account balances as of June 30, 2016 have been reclassified to conform with the
presentation as of June 30, 2017.
NOTE 2 - LINE OF CREDIT
The School has a line of credit with a maximum authorization of $500,000. Advances against
this line bear interest at a rate of .75% plus prime. Any borrowings are secured by assets of
the School. There were no amounts outstanding at June 30, 2017 and 2016.
NOTE 3 - SPECIAL EDUCATION AND OTHER SUPPORT
Special education services required by students of the School are provided by the Buffalo City
School District. The Buffalo City School District also provided transportation services. The
School was unable to determine a value for these services, thus, these financial statements do
not reflect revenue or expenses associated with those services.
The School receives state aid in the form of textbooks, computer hardware, computer
software, and library materials through the Buffalo City School District. The total aid
received for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $42,918 and $35,418, respectively.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(Continued)
NOTE 4 - PENSION EXPENSE
The School participates in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (System), a costsharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the New York State
Teachers' Retirement Board. The System provides retirement, disability, withdrawal, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York.
Plan members who joined the System before July 27, 1976 are not required to make
contributions. Those joining after that date and before January 1, 2010, who have less than ten
years of service or membership are required to contribute 3% of their annual salary. Those
joining on or after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012 are required to contribute 3.5% of
their annual salary for their entire working career. Those joining on or after April 1, 2012 are
required to contribute between 3% and 6%, dependent upon their salary, for their entire
working career.
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Rates applicable to the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 were 11.72% and 13.26%, respectively. The total
retirement contribution expense was $253,309 and $294,440 for the years ended June 30,
2017 and 2016, respectively.
NOTE 5 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the School entered into an interest rate swap agreement
(derivative instrument), to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates associated with
variable interest rate indebtedness on the bond financing. Under such arrangements, a portion
of variable rate indebtedness is converted to fixed rates based on a notional principal amount.
The notional principal amount under the interest rate swap agreement, which matures April
2023, totaled $2,590,646 and $2,989,514 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
In accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the School recognizes all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and
measures those instruments at fair value. The School recognizes any change in fair value on
these agreements as a change in net assets in the period of change. The estimated fair value of
the interest rate swap agreements was a liability of approximately $6,377 and $74,736 at June
30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was
determined using an externally developed model using forward-looking assumptions of
interest rates and the resulting effect on the underlying cash flows of the interest rate swaps
(considered Level 3 inputs in the hierarchy as described in Note 1). The valuations do not
include adjustments for nonperformance risk on behalf of either party.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(Continued)
NOTE 6 - LONG TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30:
2017

2016

Tax-exempt revenue bonds with the Buffalo and Erie
County Industrial Land Development Corporation,
originally in the amount of $3,250,000, net of bond
acquisition costs of $133,080 and $155,894 at June
30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The bonds bear
interest at a variable interest rate equal to 67% of the 1
month USD LIBOR rate. Variable escalating annual
principal and interest installment payments are to be
made in equal monthly installments of approximately
$40,000 through April 2023. The agreement is
secured by an irrevocable letter of credit.
$
Bond Acquisition Costs, Net
Less: Current Maturities
Long-Term Portion

$

2,457,566

$

2,833,620

133,080

155,894

(411,642)

(398,868)

2,179,004

$

2,590,646

Maturities of long-term debt for the years after June 30, 2018 are as follows:
Year
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

Total

$

Amount
424,680
438,066
451,944
466,332
397,982
2,179,004

The bond financing requires the School to meet certain restrictive covenants. These covenants
include a requirement for the School to maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of not
less than 1.2 or 1.0, calculated as of the end of each fiscal year. The School was in
compliance with all of the covenants at June 30, 2017 and 2016.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
(Continued)
NOTE 6 - LONG TERM DEBT (Continued)
In prior years, the School had reported bond acquisition costs as a deferred charge on the
balance sheet and amortization of such costs in the statement of activities as amortization
expense. To comply with new generally accepted accounting principle presentation
requirements, during the year ended June 30, 2017, the School began reporting such costs as a
direct reduction from the face amount of the related debt (as shown in the note above) and
reclassified prior year amounts, resulting in a reduction of 2016 total assets and liabilities by
$155,894. The change did not affect net assets.
Similarly, the School now reports amortization of loan acquisition costs as interest expense.
The 2016 amount has been reclassified accordingly. As a result, reported interest expense in
2016 was increased, and amortization decreased by $15,209, with no effect on the change in
net assets.

NOTE 7 - DONATED SERVICES AND GOODS
The School receives donated services that, although substantial, do not meet the criteria for
recording as revenue and expense under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
NOTE 8 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 30, 2017, which is the date the
statements were available for issuance.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Independent Auditors' Report
To the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
Buffalo, New York
We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Buffalo
Academy of Science Charter School (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the balance sheet as
of June 30, 2017, and the related statements of activities and functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 30, 2017.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Buffalo Academy of
Science Charter School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Buffalo Academy of Science Charter
School's financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Heveron & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Rochester, New York
October 30, 2017
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October 4, 2017
To The Finance Committee
of the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
190 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
Dear Committee Members:
In addition to the required communications that we included in a separate letter, we have some
observations about financial trends, internal controls, and compliance.
Trends
Comparative financial information for the current and prior year are enclosed. This information
should assist you in analyzing your financial results and may be useful for budgeting and planning.
Significant trends that we noted include:
!

Cash decreased $200,000 from the prior year. This is due to the purchase of a new building to
house an elementary school program. There is a related increase in your fixed asset building
account. Additionally, construction began on the new building. The capitalized costs at yearend amounted to $235,000.

!

The School started a 5th grade class during the 2016-2017 school year. As a result, resident
student enrollment increased $875,000 and special education revenue increased $22,000. The
Federal Title I funding also increased $71,000 due to the new grade. The School will continue
to see an increase in revenue as it expands grade levels through the elementary school.

!

Additional teachers and supportive staff were hired for the new 5th grade class. Instructional
personnel expense increased $354,000, non-instructional increased $115,000, and
administrative personnel increased $22,000. There was a related increase in payroll taxes and
benefits of $145,000. However, due to a decrease in the required contribution percentage,
retirement benefit expense decreased $41,000.

Control Deficiencies
The following are not considered significant deficiencies or material weaknesses:
!

Although the vast majority of your routine record-keeping transactions appear to be handled properly,
certain adjustments were not recorded or were not accurate. This had an impact on your financial
results. We recommended several adjustments including, reversing prior year accruals and
receivables, posting payments for debt, and adjusting grant revenue. This means there were changes
from the statements you used during the year for financial decisions. If this continues in the future, it
may result in a control deficiency categorized as a significant deficiency or material weakness. Also,
you should ensure your accounting software can provide accurate reports detailing the specific
receivables and payables that support the balances in the general ledger. It is important that you have
the ability to generate a report that provides that level of detail, so you can monitor your bills and
receivables during the year and that it ties to the general ledger at any point during the year.

Compliance
!

During testwork, we noted that two student files were missing proof of residency. Additionally, we
noted that one student file was missing the student's birth certificate required for proof of existence.
These forms of documentation are required by the New York State Education Department. You
should review your student files to ensure all necessary documentation is accounted for. We know
that you have a new online system for registration so this should help with obtaining and retaining
address documentation.

!

Based on your charter, your lottery policy states that residents of the Buffalo City School District
should receive priority when you have a lottery. You should ensure that your new software allows for
this priority, so you can be sure that you are following your Charter agreement.

Please contact us if you have any questions about this letter or if we can help in any other way.
Sincerely,

Heveron & Company CPAs

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE
CHARTER SCHOOL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
Buffalo, New York
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
(a nonprofit organization), which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2016 and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School as of June 30, 2016 and the changes in
net assets and functional expenses, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Prior Period Financial Statements
The financial statements of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School as of June 30, 2015 were audited
by other auditors whose report dated October 29, 2015, expressed a qualified opinion on those statements.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated October 20, 2016
on our consideration of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School's internal control over financial
reporting, and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Buffalo Academy
of Science Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Heveron & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Rochester, New York
October 20, 2016
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2016 and 2015

ASSETS
2016

2015

$1,171,683
10,843

$1,514,160
9,085

14,477
8,523
12,974
-

78,888
17,907
13,433
39,076

1,218,500

1,672,549

Land
Building and Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

155,900
3,619,661
1,056,311
(749,725)

823,334
1,001,819
(956,481)

Net Property and Equipment

4,082,147

868,672

5,480

67,664

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash - Extraclassroom Funds
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets
Property and Equipment

Other Assets
Security Deposits
Bond Financing Costs, Net of Accumulated Amortization
of $15,209 at June 30, 2016

155,894

Total Other Assets

161,374

67,664

$5,462,021

$2,608,885

TOTAL ASSETS
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-

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
2016

2015

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Extraclassroom Funds
Current Portion of Bonds Payable
Total Current Liabilities

$

23,029
395,401

$

18,566
466,607

10,843
398,868

9,085
-

828,141

494,258

Long-Term Liabilities
Bonds Payable
Interest Rate Swap Contracts

2,590,646
74,736

-

Total Long-Term Liabilities

2,665,382

-

Total Liabilities

3,493,523

494,258

Undesignated
Board Designated

1,268,498
700,000

1,414,627
700,000

Total Net Assets

1,968,498

2,114,627

$5,462,021

$2,608,885

Net Assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

2016
Revenues and Other Support:
Public School District:
Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment
Revenue - Students with Disabilities
Federal Grants
State Grants
Contributions
Other Income

2015

$ 4,714,446 $ 4,693,021
298,679
360,933
202,239
167,290
95,455
48,736
15,002
9,738
24,209
11,382

Total Revenues and Other Support
Expenses:
Program Services:
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs
Total Program Services Expense
Supporting Services:
Management and General
Total Expenses
Excess of Revenues and Other
Support Over Expenses Before
Other Expenses
Other Expenses
Loss on Disposal of Assets

5,350,030

5,291,100

3,799,268
241,601
55,670

4,133,804
360,933
45,967

4,096,539

4,540,704

896,101

568,173

4,992,640

5,108,877

357,390

182,223

(428,783)

Excess/(Deficit) of Revenues and
Other Support Over Expenses After
Other Expenses

(71,393)
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-

182,223

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
(Continued)
2016
Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Assets - Beginning of Year as Restated
Loss on Change in Fair
Value of Derivative
Instruments
Net Assets - End of Year

2,114,627
2,114,627

(74,736)

2015
1,798,768
133,636
1,932,404

-

$ 1,968,498 $ 2,114,627

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2015)
Program Services
Regular
Special
Other
Education
Education
Programs

Management
and General

Totals
2016

2015

8,243
362,753

$ 2,035,366
358,620
362,753

$ 1,968,930
538,276
212,994

No. of
Positions
Personnel Service Costs
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel
Administrative Personnel

45
14
6

$ 1,862,801
358,620
-

Total Salaries and Wages

65

2,221,421

143,612

20,710

370,996

2,756,739

2,720,200

218,790
394,651

23,202
37,153

1,346

52,448
89,530

294,440
522,680

360,088
550,199

2,834,862

203,967

22,056

512,974

3,573,859

3,630,487

165,967
134,459
116,810
113,447
78,074
51,219
51,869
50,862
46,384

9,873
1,250
7,552
4,816
3,353
3,288
2,848

33,614
-

34,948
36,803
20,597
33,307
41,658
2,525
80,606
9,146
8,969
10,437

210,788
172,512
144,959
151,570
119,732
87,358
80,606
64,368
63,119
59,669

162,425
56,519
467,659
188,738
67,923
83,059
79,258
60,416
36,307

Retirement
Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes
Total Personnel Services
Depreciation and Amortization
Technology
Building Rent and Taxes
Other Professional Services
Supplies and Materials
Student Services
Marketing and Recruitment
Interest
Repairs and Maintenance
Insurance

$

143,612
-
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$

20,710
-

$

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2015)
(Continued)
Program Services
Regular
Special
Other
Education
Education
Programs
Other Expenses
Travel and Parking
Utilities
Legal Services
Professional Development
Office Expense
Accounting and Auditing Fees
Equipment and Furnishings
Total Expenses

45,380
44,170
38,661
20,744
2,038
4,322
$ 3,799,268

2,155
2,499
$

241,601

Management
and General

$

55,670

11,024
7,709
6,818
33,652
7,757
21,021
15,647
503
$

Totals
2016

2015

56,404
54,034
47,978
33,652
28,501
23,059
15,647
4,825

72,502
50,007
58,672
9,753
46,711
20,314
16,786
1,341

896,101 $ 4,992,640

$ 5,108,877

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
2016

2015

(71,393) $

182,223

210,788
428,783

162,425
-

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Excess/(Deficit) of Support and Revenue Over Expenses
Noncash Expenses, Revenues, Losses and Gains:
Depreciation and Amortization
Loss on Disposal of Assets
(Increase)/Decrease In:
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Security Deposits
Restricted Cash - Extraclassroom Funds
Increase/(Decrease) In:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Extraclassroom Funds

$

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities

64,411
9,384
459
39,076
62,184
(1,758)

(25,337)
55,556
(2,780)
(1,258)
(5,480)
(4,504)

4,463
(71,206)
1,758

17,252
26,077
4,504

676,949

408,678

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property and Equipment

(3,837,837)

(177,284)

Cash Flow Used By Investing Activities

(3,837,837)

(177,284)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Bonds
Payments on Bonds
Bond Acquisition Costs

3,250,000
(260,486)
(171,103)

-

Cash Flow Provided By Financing Activities

2,818,411

-

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(342,477)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

1,514,160

231,394
1,282,766

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

$ 1,171,683 $ 1,514,160

Supplemental Disclosures
Cash Paid During The Year For:
Interest

$

64,368 $

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
Organization
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School (the School) is a not-for-profit education
corporation that operates grades 7th through 12th dedicated to providing quality education to a
diverse body of students in the Buffalo region of New York State. Located in the heart of
Buffalo’s downtown business/government sector, the School continually provides a rigorous,
innovative and enhanced curriculum – highlighting science, technology, engineering, and
math (STEM) – in order to prepare students for successful futures in the global environment.
The School obtains its revenue mainly from Charter School Basic Tuition from the Buffalo
City School District and a few other surrounding school districts, in addition to state and
federal grants.
The main programs of the School are as follows:
REGULAR EDUCATION: The School's curriculum is focused on science, technology,
engineering and math. The School maintains high expectations for students and provides
varied opportunities for students to gain skills necessary to be competitive in the 21st century
marketplace.
SPECIAL EDUCATION: The School is open to all children and does not discriminate on the
basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, disability, or any other grounds that would be
unlawful or deny the civil rights of any individual. In accordance with the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act, the Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, and the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the School provides a free and appropriate education, in the least restrictive
environment to students with disabilities. The primary service delivery for students with
special needs is inclusion. Services for students requiring supplemental services are provided
by the Buffalo City School District.
OTHER PROGRAMS: Other programs include food services, athletics, and extra-curricular
activities.
Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.

-10-

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
existence and nature of donor restrictions in three classes of net assets: unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted. There were no temporarily or permanently
restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 2015.
The School also records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support depending on the existence and nature of any donor
restrictions.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America allow the School to
treat as unrestricted, any restricted revenue where the restrictions are met in the same year.
The School has elected to follow that reporting method. As a result, all activities in which
restrictions are met are recorded in the Unrestricted Net Asset class.
The following are descriptions of the School's net asset classifications:
Unrestricted:
Undesignated: Unrestricted net assets include resources that are available for the general
support of the School's operations.
Board Designated: The Board of Trustees has resolved to set aside funds for future
expansion of the school to grades K-6. Board designated funds totaled $700,000 at June
30, 2016 and 2015.
Revenue Recognition
A portion of the School's revenue is derived from grants. Amounts received, but not yet
earned are reported as deferred revenue.
Funding sources may, at their discretion, amend the grant and contract amounts. In addition,
reimbursement for expenses or return of funds, or both, may be requested as a result of
noncompliance by the School with the terms of the grants and contracts. The School records
such amendments, reimbursements, and returns of funds as an adjustment to revenue in the
year of the amendment.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Contributions
Contributions are recorded at the time of receipt or when evidence of a non-conditional
promise to give has been received. Promises subject to conditions are not recorded as income
until those conditions have been met. Contributions that are expected to be received in future
years are recorded at their present value. Contributions are recorded as unrestricted, unless
they are subject to donor restrictions or are required to be used or expected to be received in
future years.
Accounts and Grants Receivable
Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect. Amounts that
management believes to be uncollectible after collection efforts have been completed are
written off. In addition, management evaluates the need for, and if appropriate, provides an
allowance to reduce receivables to amounts management expects will be collected.
Management determined that no allowances were necessary at June 30, 2016 and 2015.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. The School capitalizes property and equipment with
a cost of over $1,000 and an estimated life of more than one year. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows.

Buildings
Leasehold Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Years
40
5-15
5-10

Depreciation expense amounted to $195,578 and $162,425 for the years ended June 30, 2016
and 2015, respectively.
Financing Costs
Financing costs are being amortized on the straight-line method over the term of the
obligation. Amortization expense amounted to $15,209 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
Income Taxes
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the School is qualified as a charity exempt
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, and has also determined that the
School is publicly supported. As a result, no provision for federal or state income taxes has
been made.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Advertising
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
Inventories
Inventories consist of school uniforms and are recorded at cost.
Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America established a
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1 measurements), and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:
Level 1: Inputs to the valuation method are unadjusted quoted market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs to the valuation method include:

quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets;

inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability;

inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or by other means.
Level 3: Inputs to the valuation method are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.
The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues
and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could vary
from those estimates.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on hand and in banks, which at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. The School considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Certain of these accounts are not
federally insured. The School has not experienced any losses in these accounts and does not
believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at June 30:

Checking
Savings
Money Market
Total

2016
$ 869,027
227,528
75,128

2015
$1,211,835
227,300
75,025

$1,171,683

$1,514,160

Functional Expenses
The costs of providing the various program services have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among program and supporting services. An immaterial amount of fundraising costs for the
years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are included in management and general expenses.
Comparative Financial Information
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in
total. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2015 from which the summarized information was
derived.
Reclassifications
Certain account balances as of June 30, 2015 have been reclassified to conform with the
presentation as of June 30, 2016.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
(Continued)
NOTE 2 - PENSION EXPENSE
The School participates in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (System), a costsharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the New York State
Teachers' Retirement Board. The System provides retirement, disability, withdrawal, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York.
Plan members who joined the System before July 27, 1976 are not required to make
contributions. Those joining after that date and before January 1, 2010, who have less than ten
years of service or membership are required to contribute 3% of their annual salary. Those
joining on or after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012 are required to contribute 3.5% of
their annual salary for their entire working career. Those joining on or after April 1, 2012 are
required to contribute between 3% and 6%, dependent upon their salary, for their entire
working career.
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Rates applicable to the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were 13.26% and 17.53%, respectively. The total
retirement contribution expense was $294,440 and $360,088 for the years ended June 30,
2016 and 2015, respectively.

NOTE 3 - LINE OF CREDIT
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School has a line of credit with a maximum
authorization of $500,000. Advances against this line bear interest at a rate of .75% plus
prime. Any borrowings are secured by assets of the School. There were no amounts
outstanding at June 30, 2016 and 2015.

NOTE 4 - SPECIAL EDUCATION AND OTHER SUPPORT
Special education services required by students of the School are provided by the Buffalo City
School District. The Buffalo City School District also provided transportation services. The
School was unable to determine a value for these services, thus, these financial statements do
not reflect revenue or expenses associated with those services.
The School receives State Aid in the form of textbooks, computer hardware, computer
software, and library materials through the Buffalo City School District. The total aid
received for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $35,418 and $26,659, respectively.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
(Continued)
NOTE 5 - LONG TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30, 2016:
Tax-exempt revenue bonds with the Buffalo and
Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation, originally in the amount of
$3,250,000. The bonds bear interest at a variable
interest rate equal to 67% of the 1 month USD
LIBOR rate. Variable escalating annual principal
and interest installment payments are to be made
in equal monthly installments of approximately
$40,000 through April 2023. The agreement is
secured by an irrevocable letter of credit.
$
Less: Current Maturities
Long-Term Portion

$

2,989,514
(398,868)
2,590,646

Maturities of long-term debt for the years after June 30, 2017 are as follows:
Year
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

Total

$

Amount
411,642
424,680
438,066
451,944
466,332
397,982
2,590,646

The bond financing requires the School to meet certain restrictive covenants. These covenants
include a requirement for the School to maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of not
less than 1.2 or 1.0, calculated as of the end of each fiscal year. The School was in
compliance with all of the covenants at June 30, 2016.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
(Continued)
NOTE 6 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the School entered into an interest rate swap agreement
(derivative instrument), to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates associated with
variable interest rate indebtedness on the bond financing. Under such arrangements, a portion
of variable rate indebtedness is converted to fixed rates based on a notional principal amount.
At June 30, 2016, the notional principal amount under the interest rate swap agreement, which
matures April 2023, totaled $2,989,514.
In accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the School recognizes all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and
measures those instruments at fair value. The School recognizes any change in fair value on
these agreements as a change in net assets in the period of change. The estimated fair value of
the interest rate swap agreements was a liability of approximately $74,736 at June 30, 2016.
The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was determined using an externally
developed model using forward-looking assumptions of interest rates and the resulting effect
on the underlying cash flows of the interest rate swaps (considered Level 3 inputs in the
hierarchy as described in Note 1). The valuations do not include adjustments for
nonperformance risk on behalf of either party.

NOTE 7 - DONATED SERVICES AND GOODS
The School receives donated services that, although substantial, do not meet the criteria for
recording as revenue and expense under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

NOTE 8 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
A prior period adjustment affecting the year ended June 30, 2015 was made. The June 30,
2015 comparative financial statements have been restated to reflect this adjustment. The
adjustment was necessary to record income in the proper period. The net adjustment was a
decrease of $19,091 in Unrestricted Net Assets.
A prior period adjustment affecting years prior to June 30, 2015 was also made. The
adjustment was necessary to record income in the proper period. The net adjustment was an
increase of $133,636 in Unrestricted Net Assets.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2016
(Continued)
NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 20, 2016, which is the date the
statements were available for issuance.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Independent Auditors' Report
To the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
Buffalo, New York
We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Buffalo Academy of
Science Charter School (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2016,
and the related statements of activities and functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20,
2016.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Buffalo Academy of
Science Charter School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Buffalo
Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination
of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Buffalo Academy of Science Charter
School's financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Heveron & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Rochester, New York
October 20, 2016
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016
Not Applicable

-21-

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

Finding 2015-001 - Implementation of Accounting System, Accounting Reconciliations and Journal
Entries
Condition: The School purchased and implemented a comprehensive accounting software
during the fiscal year that went live on July 1, 2014. Software training and technical support
was available for a limited period of time during implementation to assist the personnel in the
business office. Further, there is a limited number of personnel within the business office to
assist in the review and reconciliation process to ensure accounting software agreed to
reconciliations.
Recommendation: The auditor recommended management evaluate the use of the accounting
system and obtain additional training and technical support. The auditor also recommended
allocating additional resources to the review and approval of the reconciliation, journal entry,
and transaction recording process to mitigate the effects of potential errors. Management
concurred with the recommendation and indicated that additional processes and procedures, as
well as additional resources to the business office would be implemented.
Current Status:
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School has implemented processes and measures to
address findings and improve identified items. No similar findings were noted in the 2016
audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
Buffalo, New York
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter
School (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017
and the related statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related statements of
activities and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and
its cash flows for the years then ended and the changes in net assets and functional expenses for the
year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.
Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited the Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School's statements of activities
and functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2017, and we expressed an unmodified audit
opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 30, 2017. In our opinion,
the summarized comparative information presented herein, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 1,
2018 on our consideration of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School's internal control over
financial reporting, and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter
School's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Buffalo
Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Heveron & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Rochester, New York
November 1, 2018
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2018 and 2017

ASSETS
2018

2017

$ 736,820
9,451

$ 973,526
7,125

140,472
79,351
36,471

63,436
45,569
16,346

1,002,565

1,106,002

Land
Building and Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Vehicles
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

186,400
5,032,361
1,802,655
4,741
(1,320,064)

186,400
4,200,240
1,210,326
4,741
(976,484)

Net Property and Equipment

5,706,093

4,625,223

10,480
28,971

5,480
-

39,451

5,480

$6,748,109

$5,736,705

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Total Current Assets
Property and Equipment

Other Assets
Security Deposits
Interest Rate Swap Contracts
Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
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LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
2018

2017

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Extra Classroom Funds
Current Portion of Bonds Payable

$ 183,520
916,045

$

84,082
358,834

11,494
459,518

9,183
411,642

1,570,577

863,741

1,754,324
(110,266)
1,644,058
-

2,179,004
(133,080)
2,045,924
6,377

Total Long-Term Liabilities

1,644,058

2,052,301

Total Liabilities

3,214,635

2,916,042

3,420,125
113,349
3,533,474
-

2,657,314
113,349
2,770,663
50,000

3,533,474

2,820,663

$6,748,109

$5,736,705

Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Bonds Payable
Less: Bond Acquisition Costs, Net
Net Bonds Payable
Interest Rate Swap Contracts

Net Assets
Unrestricted
Undesignated
Board Designated
Total Unrestricted Net Assets
Temporarily Restricted
Total Net Assets
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2017)
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted
Revenues and Other Support:
Public School District:
Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment $ 7,753,840 $
Revenue - Students with Disabilities
290,969
Special Charter School Aid
195,016
Federal Grants
393,450
State Grants
89,451
Contributions
17,841
Other Income
43,498
Released From Restriction
50,000
Total Revenues and Other Support
Expenses:
Program Services:
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs

8,834,065

2018

2017

$ 7,753,840 $ 5,588,974
290,969
321,273
195,016
84,114
393,450
279,509
89,451
158,947
17,841
60,952
43,498
34,411
(50,000)
(50,000)

8,784,065

6,528,180

5,778,479
373,022
113,572

-

5,778,479
373,022
113,572

4,216,215
198,727
55,822

6,265,073

-

6,265,073

4,470,764

1,841,529

-

1,841,529

1,273,610

Total Expenses

8,106,602

-

8,106,602

5,744,374

Change in Net Assets

727,463

677,463

783,806

2,820,663

1,968,498

35,348

68,359

Total Program Services Expense
Supporting Services:
Management and General

Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Gain on Change in Fair Value
of Derivative Instruments
Net Assets - End of Year

2,770,663
35,348
$ 3,533,474 $

(50,000)
50,000
-

$ 3,533,474 $ 2,820,663

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2017)

2018
No. of
Positions

Program Services
Regular
Special
Other
Education
Education
Programs

Management
and General

Totals
2018

2017

65,881
429,611
496,378

$ 3,489,859
774,817
496,378

$ 2,389,997
472,915
384,802

Personnel Service Costs
Instructional Personnel
Non-Instructional Personnel
Administrative Personnel

65
36
7

$ 3,216,497
345,206
-

Total Salaries and Wages

108

3,561,703

195,216

12,265

991,870

4,761,054

3,247,714

232,864
617,933

19,116
66,923

1,001

47,402
201,734

299,382
887,591

253,309
668,382

4,412,500

281,255

13,266

1,241,006

5,948,027

4,169,405

309,689
205,504
179,631
60,945
138,280
54,184
101,043
115,728
79,342
70,765

60,919
2,564
9,219
6,736
5,010
5,056
-

100,306
-

33,891
30,399
41,318
134,863
45,198
16,500
27,698
2,282
21,889
19,114

343,580
296,822
220,949
198,372
192,697
170,990
135,477
123,020
106,287
89,879

226,759
196,845
167,777
117,309
102,214
114,769
62,820
139,813
74,482
80,533

Retirement
Fringe Benefits and Payroll Taxes
Total Personnel Service Costs
Depreciation
Other Professional Services
Supplies and Materials
Technology
Repairs and Maintenance
Student Services
Utilities
Interest
Insurance
Professional Development

$

195,216
-
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$

12,265
-

$

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For The Year Ended June 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals For The Year Ended June 30, 2017)
(Continued)
Program Services
Regular
Special
Other
Education
Education
Programs
Other Expenses
Travel and Parking
Marketing and Recruitment
Equipment and Furnishings
Office Expense
Legal Services
Accounting and Auditing Fees
Total Expenses

6,051
44,796
21
$ 5,778,479

2,263
$

373,022

$

113,572

Management
and General
73,748
4,527
49,842
45,578
20,085
17,138
16,453

Totals
2018

2017

79,799
51,586
49,842
45,599
20,085
17,138
16,453

58,534
63,995
84,837
20,655
21,175
27,532
14,920

$ 1,841,529 $ 8,106,602

$ 5,744,374

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
2018

2017

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Revenue from School Districts
Special Charter School Aid
Grant Revenues
Contributions
Other Sources
Payments to Vendors for Goods and Services Rendered
Payments to Charter School Personnel for Services Rendered

$ 7,952,843 $ 5,876,218
195,016
84,114
410,518
358,493
17,841
60,952
43,498
34,411
(1,664,353) (1,237,670)
(5,390,816) (4,205,972)

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities

1,564,547

970,546

Purchase of Property and Equipment

(1,424,449)

(769,835)

Cash Flow Used By Investing Activities

(1,424,449)

(769,835)

800,000
(800,000)
(376,804)

(398,868)

Cash Flow Used By Financing Activities

(376,804)

(398,868)

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(236,706)

(198,157)

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Line of Credit
Payments on Line of Credit
Payments on Bonds

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

973,526

1,171,683

$

736,820 $

973,526

$

92,175 $

116,999

Supplemental Disclosures
Cash Paid During The Year For:
Interest
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Continued)
Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
2018
677,463 $

2017
783,806

Depreciation
Bond Acquisition Interest
(Increase)/Decrease In:

343,580
22,813

226,759
22,814

Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Security Deposits
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds
Increase/(Decrease) In:

(77,036)
(33,782)
(20,125)
(5,000)
(2,326)

(48,959)
(37,046)
(3,372)
3,718

99,438
557,211
2,311

61,053
(36,567)
(1,660)

Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Excess of Support and Revenue
Over Expenses to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Benefits
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds
Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activities

$

1,564,547

See Independent Auditors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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970,546

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
Organization
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School (the School) is a not-for-profit education
corporation that operates kindergarten, and 5th through 12th grades dedicated to providing
quality education to a diverse body of students in the Buffalo region of New York State.
Located in the heart of Buffalo’s downtown business/government sector, the School
continually provides a rigorous, innovative and enhanced curriculum – highlighting science,
technology, engineering, and math (STEM) – in order to prepare students for successful
futures in the global environment. The School obtains its revenue mainly from Charter School
Basic Tuition from the Buffalo City School District and a few other surrounding school
districts, in addition to state and federal grants.
The main programs of the School are as follows:
REGULAR EDUCATION: The School's curriculum is focused on science, technology,
engineering and math. The School maintains high expectations for students and provides
varied opportunities for students to gain skills necessary to be competitive in the 21st century
marketplace.
SPECIAL EDUCATION: The School is open to all children and does not discriminate on the
basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, disability, or any other grounds that would be
unlawful or deny the civil rights of any individual. In accordance with the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act, the Rehabilitation Act, Section 504, and the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the School provides a free and appropriate education, in the least restrictive
environment to students with disabilities. The primary service delivery for students with
special needs is inclusion. Services for students requiring supplemental services are provided
by the Buffalo City School District.
OTHER PROGRAMS: Other programs include food services, athletics, and extra-curricular
activities.
Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to enhance the
usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation
In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the School reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to the
existence and nature of donor restrictions in three classes of net assets: unrestricted,
temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted. There were no permanently restricted net
assets at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
The School also records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and nature of any donor
restrictions.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America allow the School to
treat as unrestricted, any restricted revenue where the restrictions are met in the same year.
The School has elected to follow that reporting method. As a result, all activities in which
restrictions are met are recorded in the Unrestricted Net Asset class.
The following are descriptions of the School's net asset classifications:
Unrestricted:
Undesignated: Unrestricted net assets include resources that are available for the general
support of the School's operations.
Board Designated: The Board of Trustees has resolved to set aside funds for future
expansion of the school to grades 1-4. Board designated funds totaled $113,349 at June
30, 2018 and 2017.
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets: Temporarily restricted net assets result from contributions
subject to donor's restrictions that expire with the passage of time or by actions of the School.
There were no temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2018. There was $50,000 of
temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 restricted for afterschool programs.
When donor restrictions from prior years expire, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue Recognition
A portion of the School's revenue is derived from grants. Amounts received, but not yet
earned are reported as deferred revenue.
Funding sources may, at their discretion, amend the grant and contract amounts. In addition,
reimbursement for expenses or return of funds, or both, may be requested as a result of
noncompliance by the School with the terms of the grants and contracts. The School records
such amendments, reimbursements, and returns of funds as an adjustment to revenue in the
year of the amendment.
Contributions
Contributions are recorded at the time of receipt or when evidence of a non-conditional
promise to give has been received. Promises subject to conditions are not recorded as income
until those conditions have been met. Contributions that are expected to be received in future
years are recorded at their present value. Contributions are recorded as unrestricted, unless
they are subject to donor restrictions or are required to be used or expected to be received in
future years.
Accounts and Grants Receivable
Receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect. Amounts that
management believes to be uncollectible after collection efforts have been completed are
written off. In addition, management evaluates the need for, and if appropriate, provides an
allowance to reduce receivables to amounts management expects will be collected.
Management determined that no allowances were necessary at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
Income Taxes
The Internal Revenue Service has determined that the School is qualified as a charity exempt
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a result, no provision for federal or
state income taxes has been made.
Marketing
Marketing costs are expensed as incurred.
Inventories
Inventories consist of school uniforms and are recorded at cost.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost. The School capitalizes property and equipment
with an estimated life of three years or more and amounts over the following thresholds:

Leasehold Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Computers

Cost
$5,000
$2,000
$5,000

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment purchased as a bundle greater than $20,000 will be also be
capitalized and all land and vehicle acquisitions are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization
is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Buildings
Building Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Vehicles
Computers

Years
40
10-20
5
5
3

Depreciation expense amounted to $343,580 and $226,759 for the years ended June 30, 2018
and 2017, respectively.
Functional Expenses
The costs of providing the various program services have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among program and supporting services. An immaterial amount of fundraising costs for the
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are included in management and general expenses.
Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America established a
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1 measurements), and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3
measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described on the next page:
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Determining Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Continued)
Level 1: Inputs to the valuation method are unadjusted quoted market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs to the valuation method include:
! quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
! quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
! inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
! inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or by other means.
Level 3: Inputs to the valuation method are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.
The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used, need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include all cash on
hand and in banks, which at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The School considers
all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents. Certain of these accounts are not federally insured. The School has not
experienced any losses in these accounts and does not believe it is exposed to any significant
credit risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following at June 30:

Checking
Savings
Money Market
Total

-14-

2018
$ 433,573
227,925
75,322

2017
$ 670,639
227,678
75,209

$ 736,820

$ 973,526

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
(Continued)
NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues
and expenses, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could vary
from those estimates.
Comparative Financial Information
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in
total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to
constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the School’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017 from which the
summarized information was derived.
NOTE 2 - LINE OF CREDIT
The School has a line of credit with a maximum authorization of $500,000. Advances against
this line bear interest at a rate of .75% plus prime. Any borrowings are secured by assets of
the School. There were no amounts outstanding at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
NOTE 3 - SPECIAL EDUCATION AND OTHER SUPPORT
Special education services required by students of the School are provided by the Buffalo City
School District. The Buffalo City School District also provided transportation services. The
School was unable to determine a value for these services, thus, these financial statements do
not reflect revenue or expenses associated with those services.
The School receives state aid in the form of textbooks, computer hardware, computer
software, and library materials through the Buffalo City School District. The total aid
received for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $14,128 and $42,918, respectively.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
(Continued)
NOTE 4 - PENSION EXPENSE
The School participates in the New York State Teachers' Retirement System (System), a costsharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the New York State
Teachers' Retirement Board. The System provides retirement, disability, withdrawal, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries as authorized by the Education Law and the
Retirement and Social Security Law of the State of New York.
Plan members who joined the System before July 27, 1976 are not required to make
contributions. Those joining after that date and before January 1, 2010, who have less than ten
years of service or membership are required to contribute 3% of their annual salary. Those
joining on or after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012 are required to contribute 3.5% of
their annual salary for their entire working career. Those joining on or after April 1, 2012 are
required to contribute between 3% and 6%, dependent upon their salary for their entire
working career.
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Rates applicable to the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 were 9.8% and 11.72%, respectively. The total
retirement contribution expense was $299,382 and $253,309 for the years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively.
NOTE 5 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the School entered into an interest rate swap agreement
(derivative instrument), to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates associated with
variable interest rate indebtedness on the bond financing. Under such arrangements, a portion
of variable rate indebtedness is converted to fixed rates based on a notional principal amount.
The notional principal amount under the interest rate swap agreement, which matures April
2023, totaled $2,213,842 and $2,590,646 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
In accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the School recognizes all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and
measures those instruments at fair value. The School recognizes any change in fair value on
these agreements as a change in net assets in the period of change. The estimated fair value of
the interest rate swap agreements was an asset of $28,971 and a liability of $6,377 at June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was
determined using an externally developed model using forward-looking assumptions of
interest rates and the resulting effect on the underlying cash flows of the interest rate swaps
(considered Level 3 inputs in the hierarchy as described in Note 1). The valuations do not
include adjustments for nonperformance risk on behalf of either party.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
(Continued)
NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30:
2018

2017

Tax-exempt revenue bonds with the Buffalo and Erie
County Industrial Land Development Corporation,
originally in the amount of $3,250,000, net of bond
acquisition costs of $110,266 and $133,080 at June
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The bonds bear
interest at a variable interest rate equal to 67% of the 1
month USD LIBOR rate. Variable escalating annual
principal and interest installment payments are to be
made in equal monthly installments of approximately
$40,000 through April 2023. The agreement is
secured by an irrevocable letter of credit.
$
Bond Acquisition Costs, Net
Less: Current Maturities
Long-Term Portion

$

2,103,576

$

2,457,566

110,266

133,080

(459,518)

(411,642)

1,754,324

$

2,179,004

Maturities of long-term debt for the years after June 30, 2019 are as follows:
Year
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

Total

$

Amount
438,066
451,944
466,332
397,982
1,754,324

The bond financing requires the School to meet certain restrictive covenants. These covenants
include a requirement for the School to maintain a minimum debt service coverage ratio of not
less than 1.2 or 1.0, calculated as of the end of each fiscal year. The School was in
compliance with all of the covenants at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2018
(Continued)
NOTE 7 - DONATED SERVICES AND GOODS
The School receives donated services that, although substantial, do not meet the criteria for
recording as revenue and expense under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
NOTE 8 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 1, 2018, which is the date the
statements were available for issuance.
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Independent Auditors' Report
To the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
Buffalo, New York
We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Buffalo
Academy of Science Charter School (a nonprofit organization) which comprise the balance sheet as
of June 30, 2018, and the related statements of activities and functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November 1, 2018.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Buffalo Academy of
Science Charter School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

-19-

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Buffalo Academy of Science Charter
School's financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Heveron & Company
Certified Public Accountants
Rochester, New York
November 1, 2018
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BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
REVENUE AND EXPENSE ANALYSIS
June 30

YEARS ENDING:

2018

2017

2016

$7,753,840
290,969
195,016
393,450
89,451
17,841
43,498

$5,588,974
321,273
84,114
279,509
158,947
60,952
34,411

$4,714,446
298,679
202,239
95,455
15,002
24,209

8,784,065

6,528,180

5,350,030

5,778,479
373,022
113,572

4,216,215
198,727
55,822

3,619,430
241,601
55,670

1,841,529

1,273,610

1,075,939

8,106,602

5,744,374

4,992,640

Loss on Disposal of Assets

-

-

(428,783)

Total Other Expenses

-

-

(428,783)

NUMERIC DATA
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment
Revenue - Students with Disabilities
Special Charter School Aid
Federal Grants
State Grants
Contributions
Other Income
Total Support and Revenue
EXPENSES
Program Expenses:
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs
Supporting Services:
Management and General
Total Expenses
OTHER EXPENSES

Change in Net Assets

$ 677,463

$ 783,806

$ (71,393)

Prepared by Heveron & Company CPAs

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
TREND ANALYSIS
June 30
YEARS ENDING:

2018

2017

2016

$ 736,820
9,451
140,472
79,351
36,471
28,971
10,480
5,706,093

$ 973,526
7,125
63,436
45,569
16,346
5,480
4,625,223

$1,171,683
10,843
14,477
8,523
12,974
5,480
4,082,146

6,748,109

5,736,705

5,306,126

3,214,635
3,533,474

2,916,042
2,820,663

3,337,628
1,968,498

$6,748,109

$5,736,705

$5,306,126

$8,784,065

$6,528,180

$5,350,030

5,778,479
373,022
113,572

4,216,215
198,727
55,822

3,619,430
241,601
55,670

1,841,529
8,106,602

1,273,610
5,744,374

1,075,939
4,992,640

Loss on Disposal of Assets

-

-

(428,783)

Total Other Expenses

-

-

(428,783)

677,463

783,806

(71,393)

2,820,663

1,968,498

2,114,627

35,348
$3,533,474

68,359
$2,820,663

(74,736)
$1,968,498

BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash - Extra Classroom Funds
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Interest Rate Swap Contracts
Security Deposits
Fixed Assets, Net
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Net Assets
Total Liabilities and Net Assets
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES SUMMARY
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
EXPENSES
Program Expenses:
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs
Supporting Services:
Management and General
Total Expenses
OTHER EXPENSES

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning
Gain/(Loss) on Change in Fair Value
of Derivative Instruments
Net Assets - Ending

Prepared by Heveron & Company CPAs

BUFFALO ACADEMY OF SCIENCE CHARTER SCHOOL
REVENUE AND EXPENSE ANALYSIS
June 30

YEARS ENDING:

2018

2017

2016

PERCENTAGE DATA
SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Revenue - Resident Student Enrollment
Revenue - Students with Disabilities
Special Charter School Aid
Federal Grants
State Grants
Contributions
Other Income
Total Support and Revenue

88.3
3.3
2.2
4.5
1.0
0.2
0.5

85.7
4.9
1.3
4.3
2.4
0.9
0.5

88.0
5.6
3.8
1.8
0.3
0.5

100.0

100.0

100.0

65.8
4.2
1.3

64.6
3.0
0.9

67.7
4.5
1.0

21.0

19.5

20.1

92.3

88.0

93.3

EXPENSES AS A PERCENT OF
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
Program Expenses:
Regular Education
Special Education
Other Programs
Supporting Services:
Management and General
Total Expenses
OTHER EXPENSES
Loss on Disposal of Asset

-

-

(8.0)

Total Other Expenses

-

-

(8.0)

Change in Net Assets

7.7

12.0

(1.3)

58.7
20.0

56.5
22.1

55.2
22.9

KEY STATISTICS
Salaries as a % of Total Expenses
Payroll Overhead as a % of Total Payroll

Prepared by Heveron & Company CPAs

Auditors' Communications
October 5, 2018
To The Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
190 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
Dear Board Members:
This letter is intended only for the board and those responsible for management and governance. Although
we did review some of your internal controls, we did not perform an examination of them that would allow
us to give an opinion on the adequacy of your controls.
Those charged with management and governance are responsible for:
!
safeguarding your assets,
!
ensuring that your resources are used as directed by funders, donors, and as required by charities laws
and your own articles of incorporation,
!
assuring that you are complying with laws, regulations, contracts and grants associated with your
funding,
!
properly recording and reporting results of operations and account balances, and
!
proper business practices, operating procedures, documentation and controls.
Our audit was designed to help you with those responsibilities, and is also designed and intended to help you
to benchmark your administrative operations to best practices.
Our Responsibilities to You
As part of our audit we are required to inform you of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in your
controls that we become aware of.
Controls are procedures, policies, and responsibilities that you put in place to make sure that appropriate
transactions take place and are reported properly on your financial statements. Examples of controls are
timely billing for services you perform, ensuring proper payments are received and recorded, and measures to
prevent overpayment of payroll or vendors.

Control deficiencies result when proper procedures are not in place to assure that appropriate
transactions are carried out, recorded and reported properly.
Significant deficiencies are control deficiencies or combinations of control deficiencies that are less
severe than material weaknesses, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Material weaknesses are significant deficiencies or combinations of significant deficiencies such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
The Role of Internal Controls
Internal controls are managements’ standards to safeguard your assets. They include the following
components:
!
!
!
!
!

Setting expectations of integrity and ethical conduct, with actions such as proper hiring and
training,
Assessing risks based on your operations and your staffing,
Establishing control activities, such as separation of responsibilities, to reduce risks,
Communications from senior management to all involved staff about internal controls, and
Monitoring - ongoing evaluation of whether controls are appropriate and are working.

General Observations
Our general observations are that:
!

Your recordkeeping system is appropriate for your financial recording and reporting needs,
including allocation of revenue and expense to various programs.

!

Recordkeeping appears to be done in a timely, complete and conscientious manner.

!

Internal controls are good.

!

The attitude of management regarding the importance of proper systems and controls seems
appropriate.

!

We did not have disagreements with management in connection with our audits or difficulties in
performing the audits, and to our knowledge, management did not consult with other CPAs about
audit issues.

!

We did not become aware of fraud or illegal acts, and there were no significant financial statement
adjustments or unusual transactions.

!

No material accounting adjustments were left unrecorded.

!

There were no major changes in accounting policies and procedures or in estimating for things
such as the useful lives of equipment items, bad debts or functional allocations.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
Sincerely,

Heveron & Company CPAs

October 5. 2018
To The Finance Committee
of the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
190 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
Dear Committee Members:
In addition to the required communications that we included in a separate letter, we have some
observations about financial trends, internal controls, and best practices.
Trends
Comparative financial information and trends for the current and prior two years are also enclosed. This
information should assist you in analyzing your financial results, and may be useful for budgeting and
planning. Significant trends that we noted include:
!

Cash decreased $235,000 and $198,157 from 2017 and 2016, respectively. You do have positive
cash flow from operations. However, you are using your cash reserve to fund renovations on your
two buildings.

!

As a result of the renovations on your buildings, building and improvements increased $830,000.
Furniture, fixtures and equipment also increased $590,000. This is due to the need to purchase
equipment for new grade levels that were recently added.

!

Teachers that have selected to receive their paycheck spread over 26 paychecks, receive a balloon
payment at the end of the year equal to four paychecks. In prior years, this payment has been made
prior to year end. For the year ended June 30, 2018, this payment was made in the first week of July.
As a result, accrued payroll and benefits increased $550,000.

!

As you continue to add grade levels, your income and related expenses also increase. Total income
increased $2,250,000 and total expenses increased $2,360,000 over the prior year.

Control Deficiencies
!

Currently, the individual who submits the final payroll has the ability to make payroll changes.
Someone independent of payroll preparation should compare the final report to the preliminary
approved report to ensure there were no changes made. Any questionable items noted should be
investigated. Payroll is your largest cost and this is an important control to help assure that pay
rates and the payroll hours you are paying for are proper.

Please contact us if you have any questions about this letter or if we can help in any other way.
Sincerely,

Heveron & Company CPAs

October 5. 2018
To The Finance Committee
of the Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
190 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
Dear Committee Members:
In addition to the required communications that we included in a separate letter, we have some
observations about financial trends, internal controls, and best practices.
Trends
Comparative financial information and trends for the current and prior two years are also enclosed. This
information should assist you in analyzing your financial results, and may be useful for budgeting and
planning. Significant trends that we noted include:


Cash decreased $235,000 and $198,157 from 2017 and 2016, respectively. You do have positive
cash flow from operations. However, you are using your cash reserve to fund renovations on your
two buildings.



As a result of the renovations on your buildings, building and improvements increased $830,000.
Furniture, fixtures and equipment also increased $590,000. This is due to the need to purchase
equipment for new grade levels that were recently added.



Teachers that have selected to receive their paycheck spread over 26 paychecks, receive a balloon
payment at the end of the year equal to four paychecks. In prior years, this payment has been made
prior to year end. For the year ended June 30, 2018, this payment was made in the first week of July.
As a result, accrued payroll and benefits increased $550,000.



As you continue to add grade levels, your income and related expenses also increase. Total income
increased $2,250,000 and total expenses increased $2,360,000 over the prior year.

Control Deficiencies


Currently, the individual who submits the final payroll has the ability to make payroll changes.
Someone independent of payroll preparation should compare the final report to the preliminary
approved report to ensure there were no changes made. Any questionable items noted should be
investigated. Payroll is your largest cost and this is an important control to help assure that pay
rates and the payroll hours you are paying for are proper.

Please contact us if you have any questions about this letter or if we can help in any other way.
Sincerely,

Heveron & Company CPAs

Auditors' Communications
October 5, 2018
To The Board of Trustees
Buffalo Academy of Science Charter School
190 Franklin Street
Buffalo, NY 14202
Dear Board Members:
This letter is intended only for the board and those responsible for management and governance. Although
we did review some of your internal controls, we did not perform an examination of them that would allow
us to give an opinion on the adequacy of your controls.
Those charged with management and governance are responsible for:

safeguarding your assets,

ensuring that your resources are used as directed by funders, donors, and as required by charities laws
and your own articles of incorporation,

assuring that you are complying with laws, regulations, contracts and grants associated with your
funding,

properly recording and reporting results of operations and account balances, and

proper business practices, operating procedures, documentation and controls.
Our audit was designed to help you with those responsibilities, and is also designed and intended to help you
to benchmark your administrative operations to best practices.
Our Responsibilities to You
As part of our audit we are required to inform you of significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in your
controls that we become aware of.
Controls are procedures, policies, and responsibilities that you put in place to make sure that appropriate
transactions take place and are reported properly on your financial statements. Examples of controls are
timely billing for services you perform, ensuring proper payments are received and recorded, and measures to
prevent overpayment of payroll or vendors.

Control deficiencies result when proper procedures are not in place to assure that appropriate
transactions are carried out, recorded and reported properly.
Significant deficiencies are control deficiencies or combinations of control deficiencies that are less
severe than material weaknesses, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Material weaknesses are significant deficiencies or combinations of significant deficiencies such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
The Role of Internal Controls
Internal controls are managements’ standards to safeguard your assets. They include the following
components:






Setting expectations of integrity and ethical conduct, with actions such as proper hiring and
training,
Assessing risks based on your operations and your staffing,
Establishing control activities, such as separation of responsibilities, to reduce risks,
Communications from senior management to all involved staff about internal controls, and
Monitoring - ongoing evaluation of whether controls are appropriate and are working.

General Observations
Our general observations are that:


Your recordkeeping system is appropriate for your financial recording and reporting needs,
including allocation of revenue and expense to various programs.



Recordkeeping appears to be done in a timely, complete and conscientious manner.



Internal controls are good.



The attitude of management regarding the importance of proper systems and controls seems
appropriate.



We did not have disagreements with management in connection with our audits or difficulties in
performing the audits, and to our knowledge, management did not consult with other CPAs about
audit issues.



We did not become aware of fraud or illegal acts, and there were no significant financial statement
adjustments or unusual transactions.



No material accounting adjustments were left unrecorded.



There were no major changes in accounting policies and procedures or in estimating for things
such as the useful lives of equipment items, bad debts or functional allocations.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and the results of that testing. This communication is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
Sincerely,

Heveron & Company CPAs

